ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON

January 24, 2007
8:00 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair

Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senator Gary W I ken

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

Overview. Al aska Statewi de Mentor Project by the Departnent of

Educati on

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No action to consider

W TNESS REG STER

Roger Sanpson, Conmm ssi oner

Depart nent of Education &

Early Devel opnent

801 W 10'" st.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Dr. Gary Witeley

Depart ment of Education &

Early Devel opnent

801 W 10'" st.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Bar bara Thonpson, Deputy Conm ssi oner

Depart nent of Education &

Early Devel opnent

801 W10'" st.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

SENATE SED COW TTEE -1-

January 24,

2007



Mary Francis, Executive Director

Al aska Council| of School Admi nistrators
326 4'" Street

Suite 404

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n favor of program

Bill Bjork

NEA- Al aska

114 Second Street

Juneau AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n favor of program

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAI R GARY STEVENS called the neeting to order at 8:00:38 AM

Present at the call to order were Senators Davis, W]IKken,
Huggi ns, and Chair Stevens.

OVERVI EW ALASKA STATEW DE MENTOR PRQJECT BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATI ON

CHAIR STEVENS announced the conmttee would be having an
overview from the Departnment of Education on its statew de
mentoring project. ROGER SAMPSON, Comm ssioner, Departnent of
Education and Early Developnment (DEED), Dr. GARY WH TELEY,
Depart ment of Education Consultant, and BARBARA THOWPSQON, Deputy
Conmi ssi oner, Departnment of Education & Early Devel opnent.

COWM SSI ONER  SAMPSON announced they would be nmaking a group
presentation and then respond to any questions the conmttee
m ght have. He clarified that he wuld be talking about
princi pal coaching as well as teacher nentoring across the State
of Al aska. He announced that the group had three goals: to
reduce the turnover rate of their teachers, increase the
effectiveness of principals, and increase student achievenent
across the state. A pilot was run without State noney for two
years with excellent results. The statewide retention rate has
been inproved from 68 percent to 78 percent. They are also
using research data from ISER and the Departnent of Labor to
study the cost to the state of the teacher turnover, which was
resulting in a loss of approximately 18.5 mllion dollars a year
at the previous rate.

8:03:44 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 2- January 24, 2007



COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON expl ained that nationally, 50 percent of
the teaching force is lost within five years of entering the
pr of essi on. H's group is focusing on a way to stop the drain.
The nodel they're using for the teacher and principal nentoring
shows the results of 18 years of use in other regions, where the
retention rate is dramatically heightened. The nentor project is
clearly effective, and they have found that schools that are
maki ng significant growh in student achievenent always have

effective admnistrative instructional | eaders. He noted,
however, that not all admnistrators in Al aska are receiving
proper |eader training. Teachers need to be supported by the

bui | di ng adm ni strators.
8:05:41 AM

COWM SSI ONER  SAMPSON  enphasi zed that the nentoring program is
not just a rural program but is in 41 districts across Al aska.
However they are unable to fill all the requests for the program
due to sone travel constraints. The program has greatly
expanded in recent years, except for the nunber of nentors which
has not been increased as they have w shed.

8:07:11 AM

COWM SSI ONER SAMPSON remar ked that they have begun to draw nore
heavily on recently retired teachers, who have greater
availability and do not drain the career pool. He then

introduced Gary Whiteley, the director of the principal coaching
di vi si on.

8:07:56 AM

MR.  WH TELEY pointed out that the relationships wth the
mentors, teachers, and principals are confidential. The
information is not shared with district adm nistration.

8:08:42 AM

MR. VWH TELEY referenced a brochure brought before the commttee,
explaining the program training history within the |ast year.
The program serves 60 principals in 26 districts, with 9 part-
time coaches. They are noving nore towards centralized-|ocation
training for the principals’ training in many areas. The three
maj or el enents that inpact student achievenent are alignnment and
coherence of curriculum instructional tinme, and nonitoring
pr ogr ess.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 3- January 24, 2007



8:11: 33 AM

MR. VH TELEY began a Power Poi nt presentation. He expl ai ned how
they use taped teaching sessions to train their teachers and
principals, |ooking for different teaching el enents.

8:12:50 AM

COW SSI ONER SAMPSON clarified that GLE refers to Gade Leve
Expect ati ons. They have a very precise “roadmap” for teachers
and admnistrators that leads to state standards in reading,
witing, and mathematics. Approxinmately 1000 actual assessnents
addressing GLEs are accessible to teachers and adm nistrators on
the State website.

8:13: 55 AM

MR. VH TELEY explained that they base their programs on proven
research. Fai r banks, Anchorage, Ketchikan, and Juneau had
mnimal turnover rates this year, and thus didn't use the
program s services. Superi ntendent turnover rates are at 70
percent in the last six years in Alaska. He explained that al
of their information is housed on the State website. Thei r
docunents can be reviewed online, as well as a description of
t he program and topics. He also provided the committee with a
list of program participants and their coaches. He enphasi zed
that the program is voluntary, and also that occasionally they
have had to advise people to seek other enploynent because they
felt they did not belong in the profession.

8:17:49 AM

COW SSI ONER SAMPSON  said that there are 9,000 certified
teachers in the state and 450 principals, and that while
everyone could benefit from nentoring, expansion s not
realistic; putting nore focus on the principal coaching program
is nore efficient and rapid. After spending 2-3 years
mentoring, 50 percent of nentors return to teaching and 25
percent nove into | eadership roles in schools. Schools that are
not meeting AYP standards in many areas usually do not have
effective | eadership in the building.

8:20: 33 AM

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON of fered to take questions.

SENATE SED COW TTEE -4- January 24, 2007



8:20: 39 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked how one decides whether the program is
successful or not. Is it based on the retention rate?

8:21:16 AM

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that those who are a “bad fit” in
education conprise a very small percentage. Cenerally teachers
t hat have good training are happier, nore  productive
pr of essi onal s.

8:22: 09 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked which practices have the greatest inpact.
MR. WHI TELEY responded that classroomlevel practices have about
twice the inpact on student achievenment as do school-Ievel
practices, and are within the control of the principal.

8:23:19 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what |evel of exchange there was between
rural and urban school s.

8:23: 44 AM

COW SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that effective instructors can do
so in both rural and urban settings, and this creates a rich
envi ronnment for nentors.

8:25: 00 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS said that he was concerned that the nentors
m ght be usurping or replacing the principal’s power.

8:25:30 AM

COMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that nost principals haven't been
trained to be effective instructional | eaders.

8:26: 03 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked how it's determned that one becones a
principal. What is the qualification systen?

8:27:15 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 5- January 24, 2007



COMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that there is a further preparatory
program which mght not be effective enough, and that a nethod
was needed to nore effectively align the training with the job
They are currently working on redesigning the |eadership

pr ogram Only 1 of 5 admnistrators cones from the Al aska
university system which is one of the primary reasons efforts
cannot be focused there. It is unrealistic to think that all

preparati on can happen outside of the school or classroom
8:29: 09 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS remarked that the legislature had previously
recommended that they |look into expanding the program to five
years, and asked if there was a standard test for beconmng a
t eacher.

8:29:47 AM

COW SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that all teachers nust pass a
content-area test in order to becone qualified.

8: 30: 29 AM

MR. WHI TELEY said that a Willace Foundation study showed that
principals learn on the job, and that many principals in rural
Al aska had no admi nistrative experience.

8:31:43 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the turnover rate for superintendents
was, and remarked that he renenbered it as being three to five
years.

8:32:10 AM

MR VWH TELEY replied that it takes five to six years to
i npl enent changes in a district.

8:32:34 AM

CHAI R STEVENS remarked that superintendents are often in nore
political positions.

8:32: 45 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 6- January 24, 2007



SENATOR W LKEN said that it mght be helpful for the commttee
to understand nore of the inner workings of the program and
asked what the typical interaction wth the program was.

8:33:28 AM

MR. VH TELEY expl ained that a coach spends an average of two to
three days with the principals during site visits, and talks on
the phone once or twice a week with each principal; also there
is a bi-weekly conference call with all of his coaches. The
coach also supplies materials, resources, and offers support.
Al'l of the coaches are part-tine.

8:34: 42 AM

SENATOR WLKEN remarked on the challenges to funding in the
history of the program and that though the program was very
hi ghly spoken of it would be a challenge to find noney for it,
and al so discussed various ways of finding noney for the nentor
program

8:39: 02 AM

M5. THOWPSON replied that in this year’s budget there is $2.7
mllion in a general fund request, and the University of Al aska
did contribute their usual $500, 000.

8:40: 13 AM

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the budget for the program was still $5
mllion.

8:40: 22 AM

COW SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that the $5 nmillion budget was not
enough to serve their goals for this year, and that the nentors
wer e overwor ked.

8:41: 32 AM

SENATOR W LKEN asked for clarification on the nunber of teachers
that come fromin-state.

8:41: 43 AM

COVMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that it was one in five.

SENATE SED COW TTEE -7- January 24, 2007



8:42: 00 AM

MR. WHI TELEY stated that Al aska post-secondary institutions can
only train up to 225 teachers a year.

8:42: 24 AM

SENATOR W LKEN asked if every Al askan-trained teacher had a job
upon graduati on.

8:42: 39 AM

MR. VWH TELEY replied that not every teacher takes a job or is
hi r ed, but that there are clearly nobre vacancies than
candi dat es.

8:.42: 47 AM

SENATOR DAVI S asked for clarification on the age of the program
8:43: 01 AM

MR. WHI TELEY replied that they were in their fourth full year.
8:43: 03 AM

SENATOR DAVI S asked how many nmentors there were.

MR. WHI TELEY replied that they currently had 27 nmentors and nine
coaches, and that they wanted three nore nentors and one nore

coach. They did not receive the funding last year until it was
too late to recruit.

8:44.09 AM

SENATOR DAVI S asked for clarification on the budget totals, and
why they were asking for $5 mllion when the program would nore
clearly benefit from$7 mllion.

MR. VH TELEY replied that the nmentor program had prepared three
di fferent budgets, and they have confidence that the |egislature
wi || make the proper deci sion.

8:46:19 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the dropout rate was, and if it was
an indicator of success in the progran?

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 8- January 24, 2007



8:46: 51 AM

COM SSI ONER  SAMPSON replied that the nmentoring inpact s
difficult to neasure but the dropout rate remains high.

8:47:21 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if there was a state-wide strategy to
abate the dropout rate.

8:48: 13 AM

CHAIR STEVENS pointed out that several bills were to be
presented to the commttee in the near future that dealt wth
the subjects of drop-out rates and truancy.

8:48: 57 AM

COMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that it was a major concern of the
departnment as well, and was to be a concern of a state-w de
summ t in Anchorage in April.

8:50: 04 AM

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the recent More vs. State case made an
i mpression on the nentoring program

8:50:31 AM

COM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that the judge involved saw the
program as proactive and positive.

8:51:19 AM
MR. WHI TELEY remarked that he testified in that case for 90
mnutes and he agreed that the program was thought of
positively.
8:51: 53 AM
CHAIR STEVENS said that he knew one of the coaches on the
program |list and that he understood the very hard work. He

asked what percentage of the coaches were retired.

8:52:45 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 9- January 24, 2007



COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that one third of their progranis
mentors are retired or on a break, and that they are on contract
with the program The other nentors are on |oan, and receive
the same salary and are guaranteed a spot back in their
district. The | east experienced has six years experience, and
the nost has 31. All of the principal coaches are retired.

8:54: 09 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked if the budget includes funds from the Al aska
St udent Loan Corporati on.

8:54: 33 AM

M5. THOWPSON replied that $1.2 mllion in funds to the program
cone from secondary education, $2.7 mllion from general funds,
and the remaining is fromfederal funds and the university.

8:54:57 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked if anyone from the audience would like to
coment .

IVB. FRANCIS stated that the Alaska Council of School
Adm ni strators was supportive of the program and that they were
concerned with the retention of superintendents, and were very
happy to see themincluded in the program

8:56:31 AM

Bl LL BJORK, NEA-Al aska, stated that NEA-Al aska supported the
program and wanted to see it expanded because they recognize the
cost of replacing teachers, and the programis a good investnent
fiscally and quality-w se

8:58: 25 AM

SENATOR W LKEN called the commttee’s attention to a sunmary of
school f undi ng pr ogr ans publ i shed under t he Know es
adm nistration, helpful for seeing the different ways that
educational funding is distributed.

9:02: 25 AM

CHAI R STEVENS, seeing no further business, adjourned the Speci al
Comm ttee on Education neeting at 9:02 a. m

SENATE SED COW TTEE -10- January 24, 2007



